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NOTE FROM THE PUBLISHER
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Margaret McAllister, a receptionist at the Irish Daily Mail/Irish Mail on Sunday newspapers. She and her husband Michael live in Anglesea Road. (Irish Daily Mail/Irish Mail on Sunday)
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TIMELINE OF EVENTS






	2 August 1649:


	Baggotrath Castle (where Searson’s pub and the Langkawi restaurant are now in Upper Baggot Street) was occupied by Cromwellian forces. They fought Royalist forces at what is now the junction of Upper Baggot Street and Waterloo Road before moving on to fight the Battle of Rathmines.







	1659:


	It was revealed that three English and twenty-nine Irish families were living in the Baggotrath area, close to present day Upper Baggot Street, while Symmonscourt had twelve English families and twenty Irish.







	1766:


	Ballsbridge and the surrounding neighbourhood had a total of forty-eight families resident, sixteen Protestant and twenty-five Catholic. Symmonscourt had five Protestant families and nine Catholic.







	1 July 1870:


	Lansdowne Road and Ballsbridge railway station opened; within two years, Ballsbridge was dropped from its title. The DART system opened in 1984.







	11 March 1878:


	Lansdowne Road’s first rugby international was played, between Ireland and England. It wasn’t until 5 February 1887 that Ireland beat England in a rugby international at Lansdowne Road.







	17 March 1900:


	The first international soccer match was played at Lansdowne Road, between Ireland and England. England won 2–0.







	25 August 1905:


	Serious floods on the River Dodder in Ballsbridge.







	14 May 1906:


	First electrified No. 10 tram runs along Upper Baggot Street and Waterloo Road.







	26 August 1913:


	The Dublin Lockout starts when tram drivers and conductors walk off the job in Ballsbridge and elsewhere in the city, shortly after 10 a.m. Their trams were left idle on the day that the Horse Show opened at the Royal Dublin Showground (RDS).







	3 and 4 August 1931:


	More serious floods on the River Dodder, with the main Merrion Road at Ballsbridge under water and impassable.







	21–26 June 1932:


	The Eucharistic Congress took place in Dublin. The premises of the RDS were floodlit for the duration of the event.







	6 June 1940:


	Last No. 10 tram before it was replaced by buses.







	June 1943:


	Dublin Corporation built public lavatories at the foot of Anglesea Road, close to the bridge at Ballsbridge. Derelict for many years, they had been mooted in 2011 as a venue for a local museum but nothing came of the idea. As of the summer of 2013, Dublin City Council was trying to sell the block for redevelopment. It was recently demolished.







	11 June 1963:


	97.8mm of rain fell in twenty-four hours at the RDS.







	23 May 1964:


	The new US embassy in Ballsbridge is opened.







	13 May 1973:


	Then President of Ireland, Eamon de Valera, unveils a memorial at the corner of Herbert Park and Elgin Road, dedicated to his former comrades in the Dublin Brigade of the Old IRA during the quest for independence, beginning with the 1916 Easter Rising. It is the only such memorial in Ballsbridge.







	18 July 1981:


	H Block rioters turned the Merrion Road, close to the British embassy, into a battleground as they fought with gardaí, doing much damage to houses and gardens, and injuring many people.







	19 July 1984:


	Just after 8 a.m., an earthquake measuring 5.4 on the Richter scale hit the east of Ireland, including Ballsbridge. The most powerful for decades, its epicentre was south-west of Caernarvon, on the Lleyn peninsula in North Wales. Some minor structural damage was caused in Ballsbridge.







	23 July 1984:


	First DART train in public use stops at Lansdowne Road and Sydney Parade stations.







	25 August 1986:


	Hurricane Charley hit Ballsbridge, causing severe floods beside the River Dodder and in Anglesea Road. The RDS library was flooded, destroying many books, while the main RDS arena was flooded to the depth of 1m.







	March 1987:


	The Irish Hospitals’ Sweepstakes went into voluntary liquidation, as the new national lottery was launched on 23 March 1987. The Sweepstakes’ offices in Ballsbridge had opened in 1939, with 4,000 jobs, mostly female.







	February 1989:


	The old Johnston, Mooney & O’Brien bakery at Ballsbridge closes, with the loss of 485 jobs. Subsequently, the bakery reopened in the old Downes’ Butterkrust bakery in Finglas.







	3 April 1996:


	President Mary Robinson opens the National Print Museum at what had been Beggar’s Bush Barracks in Haddington Road.







	31 December 2006:


	The old Lansdowne Road stadium, used mainly for rugby but also for soccer, closed. Subsequently, it was demolished to make way for the new Aviva stadium.







	16 August 2010:


	Pembroke Library, run by Dublin City Council, reopened after extensive renovations. The library had originally opened in 1929 and its first librarian was Sean O’Faolain.







	31 October 2010:


	Last bus runs on the No. 10 route along Waterloo Road and Upper Baggot Street. It was replaced by the 39A.







	24 October 2011:


	Flash flooding caused severe damage in many parts of Ballsbridge, especially in the area close to the River Dodder.







	17 June 2013:


	The US First Lady, Michelle Obama, made a brief visit to the US embassy in Ballsbridge. She and her two daughters, Malia (14) and Sasha (12), stayed in the Shelbourne Hotel that night, while her husband, US President Barack Obama, was at the G8 summit in County Fermanagh.







	June 2014:


	Work is well on the way on the huge Number One Ballsbridge complex.
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Crest on the US Embassy, Ballsbridge. (Jacqueline Holohan)
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FAMOUS RESIDENTS


AILESBURY ROAD


Sir Alfred Chester Beatty was an Irish-American mining magnate and millionaire, often called the ‘King of Copper’. He became a naturalised British subject in 1933. He was also an avid collector of art and books from Asia and the Middle East. In 1949, he decided to leave Britain for tax reasons and settled in Dublin, buying a twelve-room house on Ailesbury Road for IR£12,000. He moved in in May 1950, along with 35 tons of artworks.


He then bought No. 20 Shrewsbury Road and had the Chester Beatty Library and Gallery built there. It opened in 1953 and when the extension was opened in 1957, it was attended by the then President, Sean T. O’Kelly and the then Taoiseach, Eamon de Valera. The library and gallery were relocated to Dublin Castle in 2000 and subsequent attempts to redevelop the site in Shrewsbury Road have been unsuccessful. After Sir Alfred died while in Monaco in 1968, he was accorded a State funeral, one of the few occasions on which a private Irish citizen has been given such an honour.


Kevin Haugh (1891–1969) was a barrister and judge; he was Attorney General from 1940 to 1942, when he became a Supreme Court judge, a position he held until retirement in 1968 and lived on Ailesbury Road. His son, also Kevin (1944–2009), followed his father’s path to the Bar and the High Court; he was also a circuit court judge. He was a popular and well-liked judge; subsequently, he became chairman of the Garda Ombudsman Commission, dealing with complaints against the force and its members, which began in 2007. One of the children from the marriage of Kevin Haugh and his wife Annette is their son Bob Haugh, who owns a well-known Dublin travel agency, The Travel Department.


J.P. McManus, a billionaire magnate with interests that include horse racing and soccer, lives permanently in Switzerland, but he has a Dublin residence.


The original house dated back to Edwardian times and became the Japanese embassy in 1970. The embassy was moved to offices beside the Merrion Centre in 1992; eventually the house was bought by Bernard McNamara, a property developer, for IR£2.95 million – a record for the road at that time.


McNamara demolished the house and built a new one on a lavish scale. In 2011 the house was sold for €10 million to J.P. McManus. He and his wife also have two mews houses at the rear, where they built an orangery in the garden of one of them.


ANGLESEA ROAD


Brendan Behan, the writer, lived all his married life at No. 5 Anglesea Road, close to the bridge at Ballsbridge. His wife was Beatrice, daughter of the painter, playwright, poet and publisher Cecil Salkeld. Behan died in 1964 but Beatrice continued to live in the house. After Behan’s death, Beatrice lived with Cathal Goulding, chief of staff of the Official IRA, until 1972. Their son was Paudge. The house at No. 5 had been bought by Behan in 1961 for IR£1,600, but in 2006 Paudge reluctantly sold it.


John Byrne, a noted property developer and great friend of former Taoiseach the late Charles Haughey, lived just off Anglesea Road for many years. He was 94 years old when he died in October 2013. One of Ireland’s wealthiest property developers, he was responsible for the construction of such modern architectural monstrosities as O’Connell Bridge House in central Dublin.


Neil Campbell-Sharpe, a noted photographer, lived at No. 2 Anglesea Road in the mid-1970s. He was married to Noelle Campbell-Sharpe, the one-time magazine publisher and subsequent art gallery owner, and the woman behind the Kilreilig creative arts centre in west Kerry.


Clara Dumbleton, who is in her late 80s, is one of the few residents of the area who was born in and lived in the same house all her life. Her late father, Harry, was the manager of the tar depot on Hanover Quay that belonged to the old Dublin Gas Company.


Denis O’Brien, one of Ireland’s, indeed the world’s, wealthiest entrepreneurs was brought up in Ballsbridge. He has extensive media interests that include radio stations in Europe and a major stake in Independent News & Media, as well as being the man behind Digicel, a world leader in mobile telephony. Before going to University College Dublin (UCD), he had started his first job at 14, at the Central Hotel in Exchequer Street in central Dublin.


Born in Cork in 1958, he is the second of four children of Denis O’Brien senior and his wife Iris. The family home was in Anglesea Road, and his parents still live in the same house there. In 2013, O’Brien was ranked by Forbes as having a net worth of around €4 billion.


BALLSBRIDGE TERRACE


Gerry Downey, a well-known men’s hairdresser whose salon is in the Ballsbridge Hotel, the former Jurys Hotel, was born in Ballsbridge Terrace during the Second World War. The house he was born and brought up in is now Kite’s Chinese restaurant. On occasion, he has dined in the upstairs room at Kite’s that was once his bedroom. A next-door neighbour on the terrace, a member of the Presbyterian Hamill family, was an Orangeman who went north every 12 July, but when he had become too old to travel, he used to wear his Orange regalia and march around his back garden, beating his drum and playing his instruments on the big day.


BURLINGTON ROAD


Professor George O’Brien of UCD, one of Ireland’s leading economists, lived in this road for many years. His dinner parties were legendary. He was wealthy enough to employ several servants at his home and he dined out frequently in Dublin.


He had an intense dislike of travel, so if any international economists wanted to meet him, they had to travel to Dublin. He was professor of economics at UCD from 1926 until 1961. In the mid-1960s, he was one of the most vociferous critics of the ESB’s decision to demolish a row of Georgian houses in Lower Fitzwilliam Street to make room for their new headquarters. In his later years, he had a very fixed routine, reading the Irish morning papers at home before going to Mass in St Mary’s, then collecting the English newspapers at Parsons on Baggot Street Bridge. In February 1973, on his way home from Mass, he collapsed in the street from a heart attack. He spent all that summer in Baggot Street Hospital and died on 4 January 1974.


Mary Henry, who lives at No. 12, hails from Blackrock, County Cork, where she was born in 1940. The first non-foundation scholar in medicine at Trinity College, Dublin, in 1962, she subsequently became a medical practitioner as well as a professor and she represented Trinity College graduates in the Seanad from 1993 to 2007. Her many other interests include working with Cherish, the Irish Penal Reform Trust, the Rape Crisis Centre and the Well Woman centre. She married John McEntaggart, a Dublin merchant, in 1966. Meriel, one of their three children, became a medical practitioner.


Gemma Hussey, once a Fine Gael stalwart, who was Minister for Education from 1982 to 1986, but who retired from politics in 1989, lives in Burlington Road with her husband, Derry Power. They had previously lived in Temple Road, Dartry.


Johnny Ronan, one of the most flamboyant property developers in the Celtic Tiger era, teamed up with Richard Barrett in 1989 to form Treasury Holdings, a global property development powerhouse. Ronan built a spectacular mansion in Burlington Road, nicknamed the ‘Pink Palazzo’. It is now the residence of the ambassador of Qatar, whose equally spectacular embassy is in Pembroke Road.


CLYDE ROAD


Dick Spring, a former leader of the Labour Party and a former Tanaiste, now retired from politics and a director of the Fexco financial services group, was a student at Trinity College in the late 1960s, early 1970s. At one stage, he had a bedsit in Raglan Road, before sharing a flat on Clyde Road with two young women (all innocent on his part, he says) until the morality squad in the shape of the owners of the house objected and he had to move out. He also lived in the top flat of Mrs Hartigan’s house at No. 12 Herbert Park for some years, before he took over a big flat in Raglan Road after his brother Donal had moved out. Since 1994, Dick Spring has kept an apartment at Beggar’s Bush.


ELGIN ROAD


Robert ‘Bobby’ Ballagh, one of Ireland’s most distinguished contemporary artists, lived as a child in the basement flat of No. 14; his father worked in the wholesale drapery firm of Ferrier Pollock, in South William Street, occupying what is now the Powerscourt Townhouse Centre. Bobby’s godparents lived nearby, in Lansdowne Road, and he recalls that the Ballsbridge of the 1950s was very different to today. Elgin Road was so quiet that he and friends played tennis in the road, stretching the net across the road. From beginning to end of a game, no cars appeared!


He also recalls that in those days, the neighbourhood was very mixed. In those days, he adds, Ballsbridge wasn’t posh at all, contrary to popular belief. He left Elgin Road in the early 1960s and lost track of many of the people he knew there.


Gay Byrne, the television presenter who hosted the Late Late Show on RTÉ until 1999, began his broadcasting career with the station in the early 1960s – the Late Late Show had started as a temporary summer filler in 1964. That year, he married Kathleen Watkins, the daughter of a vet, and their first home was a flat in Elgin Road.


Kevin Kelly and his wife Rose live in Elgin Road. He was a high-profile publisher, responsible for developing such magazines as Image.


Delia Murphy, the noted West of Ireland singer, and her husband, Tom Kiernan, came to live in this road in 1935. Delia, famous for singing such songs as ‘The Spinning Wheel’, and her husband stayed in Elgin Road for six years. Tom had been Director-General of Radió Éireann, but in 1941 was appointed Irish ambassador to the Vatican. In wartime Rome, Delia was one of the people who helped the Irish priest, Father Hugh O’Flaherty, known as the Vatican Pimpernel, hide Jewish people from the Nazis.


Count Plunkett (1851–1948), a biographer and Irish nationalist, a leader in 1916 and the Minister for Foreign Affairs in the first Dáil in 1919, lived at No. 40 Elgin Road. From 1907 until 1916 he had been curator of the National Museum.


Trevor White, the founder of the Little Museum of Dublin on St Stephen’s Green, was the former publisher and editor of the Dubliner magazine. He was brought up in the family home at the corner of Elgin Road and Raglan Road. Trevor’s father, Peter, a former restaurateur and property developer, and his mother, Laetitia, eventually sold that house and now live in Wellington Road.


HADDINGTON ROAD


Ferdinando Caracciolo, Prince of Cursi, an old Italian family originally from Naples, came to Ireland in 1938. He became a Papal Knight and he also worked as a director of Fiat in Ireland. He lived in the penthouse apartments at No. 38 Haddington Road. He died in 1989; six months later, his son Niccolo, who was a distinguished painter, died in a car accident near Siena in Italy.


Bernadette Madden, a Dublin-born artist, has become synonymous with the creation of batiks. She had her first solo show in 1971, and since then, has had innumerable shows in Ireland and abroad. Her studio and gallery are at the foot of Haddington Road.


HERBERT PARK


John A. Costello was a staunch member of Fine Gael, Taoiseach twice, first from 1948 to 1951 when he declared this part of Ireland a Republic, and then from 1954 until 1957. Among the achievements during his first term of office was the setting up of the Industrial Development Authority and Córas Tráchtála, the export board, which is now abolished. After the defeat of the 1957 election, he returned to his career at the Bar but continued as a TD for Dublin South-East until 1969, when he succeeded in that constituency by Dr Garret FitzGerald.


Peter Dunne has long been connected with Mitchells, the Dublin wine merchants founded in 1805. He joined the firm in 1970 and was appointed a director in 1986. A man with a wry sense of humour and a great storyteller, he has tutored many Mitchell’s wine courses over the years and has led many of Mitchell’s wine tours abroad. He has travelled to all the major wine producing regions in the world; the oldest bottle he has tasted was an 1873 port. He and his wife Anne brought up four children, Mary-Elizabeth, Jennifer, Greta and Michael, in their Herbert Park house.


Garrett Kelleher, property developer turned film mogul, paid over €5 million for No. 32 Herbert Park, an elegant Edwardian mansion next to Herbert Park. It was sold in October 2013. Among his property projects was an enormous Spire skyscraper in Chicago, which never reached construction. Subsequently, Kelleher became a successful movie maker.


Consuelo O’Connor and her family have lived for many years in Herbert Park; she is the sister of politician Carmencita Hederman. Consuelo had been married to Brian O’Connor, a solicitor, for fifty-two years; he died in October 2013.


Former Supreme Court judge Hugh O’Flaherty, who now writes a column in the Irish Independent newspaper, and his wife Kay used to live in this road. They sold their house here in 2000 and moved to Sandymount.


The O’Rahilly lived in Herbert Park with his family. Born in County Kerry in 1875, he became a magistrate, but subsequently was very involved in the independence movement. He had a private income of £900 a year, which helped matters considerably.


A founding member of the Irish Volunteers, as he lay dying in the 1916 Easter Rising he penned a poignant note to his American wife, Nannie, and his family, sending ‘tons and tons of love’ and signing off ‘goodbye darlings’.


He owned a spectacular car, a De Dion-Bouton, which ended up on a barricade in Princes Street, beside the GPO.


For many years his family owned the port of Greenore in County Louth and it was there that his grandson, Ronan O’Rahilly, had a ship fitted out to become the offshore pirate radio station, Radio Caroline.


James White was a former director of the National Gallery of Ireland from 1964 until 1980. Entirely self-taught on the subject of art, he frequently appeared on television discussing art. He had begun his working life with the Player-Wills cigarette firm in Dublin, where he had started as a clerk, eventually becoming assistant manager, before being able to move into full-time work in the art world. He also worked as an art critic and lectured on the history of art at both Trinity College and UCD.


HERBERT PARK LANE


This new apartment development was built at the same time as Embassy House and the Herbert Park Hotel, around twenty years ago, on the site of the old Johnston Mooney & O’Brien bakery. One well-known former resident here was Lucinda Creighton, a Fine Gael politician who entered politics by becoming a Dublin city councillor in 2004. In 2011, she became Minister of State for European Affairs, a position she relinquished during the 2013 abortion legislation. She is now an independent TD and has moved, not far away, to Sandymount, where she now lives with her husband, Paul Bradford, a Fine Gael senator, and their new daughter, Gwendolyn Nicola.
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